Financial Report

Year Ended December 31, 2020

**Royce T. Scimemi, CPA, APAC** Oberlin, Louisiana

.

TABLE OF CONTENTS	
	Pages
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)	3-10
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	11-12
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:	
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) Statement of Net Position Statement of Activities	15 16
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS) Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance Sheet with Statement of Net Position Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes	18 19
in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance with Statement of Activities	20 21
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	22-41
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule: Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance- Budget to Actual - General Fund Schedule of Library's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) Schedule of Library's Pension Plan Contributions NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	43 44 45 46
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Schedule of Compensation Paid to the Board of Control Members Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Chief Executive Officer	4 <b>8</b> 49
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	CIAL 50-51
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES	52
MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (UNAUDITED)	53
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS	54

### Management's Discussion and Analysis

Within this section of the Allen Parish Library's (the Library) annual financial report, the Library's management is pleased to provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the Library for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. The Library's financial performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosures following this section.

# FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- The Library's assets exceeded its liabilities by \$4,471,140 (net position) for the fiscal year reported.
- Total revenues of \$1,352,101 exceeded total expenses of \$1,193,897 which resulted in a current year surplus of \$158,204. In comparison, for the previous year ended December 31, 2019, the Library's total revenues of \$1,344,432 exceeded total expenses of \$1,250,303, yielding a surplus of \$94,129.
- Total net position is comprised of the following:
  - (1) Investment in capital assets, net of related debt, of \$2,651,287 include property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt, if applicable, related to the purchase or construction of capital assets. In comparison, as of December 31, 2019, the Library's net capital assets were \$2,773,995.
  - (2) Unrestricted net position, representing the portion of net position available to maintain the Library's continuing obligations to citizens and creditors, amounted to a surplus of \$1,819,853 and \$1,538,941 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
- The Library's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of \$1,876,686 this year. This compares to the prior year ending fund balance of \$1,575,915 reflecting an increase of \$300,771 during the current year. For the prior year ended December 31, 2019, a decrease of \$178,800 was reported in the total ending fund balance. All positive fund balances are non-spendable or unassigned.
- At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was a surplus of \$1,857,733, or 176% of total General Fund expenditures and 137% of total General Fund revenues including other financing sources. In comparison, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was a surplus of \$1,557,454, or 103% of total General Fund expenditures and 117% of total General Fund revenues including other financing sources.
- Overall, the Library improved on a strong financial position and is continuing to work to improve on this financial position.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the "financial analysis" section of this document.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

# **OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

This Management's Discussion and Analysis document introduces the Library's basic financial statements, which include: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the basic financial statements. The Library also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial statements. Comparative data is presented when available.

# **GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

The Library's annual report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Library's overall financial status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of activities between funds.

The first of these government-wide statements is the *Statement of Net Position*. This is the governmentwide statement of position presenting information that includes all of the Library's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as *net position*. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Library as a whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the Library would extend to other non-financial factors such as diversification of the taxpayer base, or the condition of Library infrastructure in addition to the financial information provided in this report.

The second government-wide statement is the *Statement of Activities*, which reports how the Library's net position changed during the current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid. An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the Library's distinct activities or functions on revenues provided by the Library's taxpayers.

Government-wide financial statements reflect governmental activities of the Library that are primarily supported by ad valorem taxes. Governmental activities principally include the operation of three libraries in Allen Parish. The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 15 and 16 of this report.

# FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Library uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Library has one kind of fund:

*Governmental fund* – This type of fund is reported in the fund financial statements and encompasses the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different with fund statements providing a distinctive view of the Library's governmental fund. These statements report short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund operating statement provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 18 through 21 of this report.

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements begin on page 22 of this report.

#### **OTHER INFORMATION**

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information consisting of (1) the management's discussion and analysis (on pages 3 - 10), (2) the budgetary comparison statement which demonstrates compliance with the Library's adopted and final revised budgets (on page 43), (3) the schedule of the Library's proportionate share of net pension liability (asset) for the Parochial Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (on page 44), and (4) the related schedule of pension plan contributions (on page 45).

This report also presents other supplementary information including the schedule of compensation paid to the Board of Control members (on page 48) and the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to the chief executive officer (on page 49).

### Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

# FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE LIBRARY AS A WHOLE

The Library's net position at fiscal year-end was \$4,471,140. The following table provides a summary of the Library's net position:

	2020		2019	
Assets: Current assets	\$ 1,961,347	43%	\$ 1,672,894	38%
Capital assets, net	<u>2,651,287</u>	<u>57</u>	<u>2,773,995</u>	<u>   62</u>
Total assets	4,612,634	<u>100</u> %	4,446,889	<u>100</u> %
Deferred outflows of resources	78,597	<u>100</u> %	243,713	<u>100</u> %
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources	<u>4,691,231</u>		<u>4,690,602</u>	
Liabilities: Current liabilities	23,795	27%	24,574	7%
Long-term liabilities	<u> </u>	<u>73</u>	327,572	_93
Total liabilities	87,593	<u>100</u> %	352,146	<u>100</u> %
Deferred inflows of resources	132,498	<u>100</u> %	25,520	<u>100</u> %
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources	<u>    220,091</u>		<u> </u>	
Net position: Investment in capital assets,				
net of related debt Unrestricted	2,651,287 1,819,853	59% 41	2,773,995 1,538,941	64% 36
Unrestricted	1,017,033	<u>41</u>	<u>1,330,941</u>	
Total net position	\$ <u>4,471,140</u>	<u>100</u> %	\$ <u>4,312,936</u>	<u>100</u> %

The Library improved on previously strong current ratios. The current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities and is an indication of the ability to pay current obligations. The current ratio is 82.43 to 1 for governmental activities. This compares with the prior year's ratio of 68.08 to 1.

The Library reported positive balances in net position for governmental activities. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, net position increased (decreased) by \$158,204 and \$94,129 for governmental activities. The Library's overall financial position improved during the fiscal year ended in December 31, 2020.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Note that approximately 59% and 64% of the governmental activities' net position are tied up in capital assets as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. The Library uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens.

The following table provides a summary of the Library's changes in net position:

		2020	)		2019	
Program Revenues						
Capital grants and contributions	\$	6,775	-%	\$	-	-%
General Revenues:						
Ad valorem taxes	1,	264,936	94	1,247	7,253	93
State revenue sharing		55,578	4	55	5,193	4
Interest		10,089	1	20	),055	2
Miscellaneous		10,313	1	17	7,234	1
Non-employer pension contributions		4,410		4	1 <u>,697</u>	<del>_</del>
Total revenues	1,	352,101	<u>100</u> %	1,344	1,432	<u>100</u> %
Expenses:						
Program expenses:						
Culture and recreation	<u>1</u> ,	<u>193,897</u>	<u>100</u>	<u>1,250</u>	) <u>,303</u>	<u>100</u>
Total expenses	<u>1,</u>	<u>193,897</u>	<u>100</u> %	<u>1,250</u>	) <u>,303</u>	<u>100</u> %
Change in net position		158,204		94	,129	
Beginning net position	<u>4,</u>	<u>312,936</u>		<u>4,218</u>	<u>8,807</u>	
Ending net position	\$ <u>4,</u>	<u>471,140</u>		\$ <u>4,312</u>	2 <u>,936</u>	

# GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

The Library is heavily reliant on ad valorem taxes to support governmental operations. Ad valorem taxes accounted for 94% of the revenues for governmental activities, as compared with 93% in the prior year. Also note that the Library had \$6,775 and no program revenues, respectively, in 2020 and 2019 to fund governmental operating expenses. This means that the government's taxpayers and the Library's general revenues fund over 99% (100% in the prior fiscal year) of the governmental activities. As a result, the general economy and the local businesses have a major impact on the Library's revenue streams.

# GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, culture and recreation comprised 100% of the Library's total expenses and governmental expenditures.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

# FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE LIBRARY'S FUNDS

#### Governmental Funds

As discussed, the governmental fund is reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of spendable resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with upcoming financing requirements. The governmental fund reported ending fund balances of \$1,876,686 and \$1,575,915 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Of the year-end total fund balance for December 31, 2020, \$1,857,733 was unassigned, indicating availability for continuing Library service requirements, and \$18,953 was non-spendable.

The total ending fund balance of the governmental fund reflects an increase of \$300,771. This compares with a decrease of \$178,800 experienced in the prior fiscal year ended December 31, 2019.

#### Major Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the Library's primary operating fund and the only source of day-to-day service delivery. The General Fund's fund balance increased by \$300,771 in the current fiscal year, while in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, the fund balance decreased by \$178,800.

Revenues increased \$28,978 or 2% more than the prior year, primarily reflecting increases in ad valorem tax revenues. Expenditures decreased \$450,593 or 30% less than the prior year, primarily due to decreases in capital outlay.

The General Fund's ending fund balance was \$1,876,686 representing the equivalent of 177% of its annual expenditures and 138% of its annual revenues including other financing sources.

### BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Both the revenue and the expenditure sides of the current year final budget for the General Fund were revised by a \$41,637 increase and a \$88,470 decrease, respectively, in relation to the prior year's final budget. The primary changes in the General Fund's amended budget reflect a decrease in ad valorem tax revenues, and an increase in capital outlay expenditures.

The actual revenues exceeded the final budget by \$61,081 or 5% and the actual expenditures were less than the final budgeted expenditures by \$378,422 or 26%.

# CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

#### Capital Assets

The Library's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental-type activities as of December 31, 2020, was \$2,651,287, while that figure as of December 31, 2019, was \$2,773,995. The overall decrease was 4% for the Library as a whole. See Note E for additional information about changes in capital assets during the fiscal year and outstanding at the end of the year. The following table provides a summary of capital asset activity.

	De	cember 31
	2020	<u>2019</u>
Nondepreciable assets-land Depreciable assets:	\$ 10,500	\$ 10,500
Buildings	2,790,872	2,790,872
Books	399,839	428,022
Furniture and fixtures	88,279	88,279
Equipment	483,712	475,194
Total depreciable assets	3,762,702	3,782,367
Less accumulated depreciation	<u>1,121,915</u>	<u>1,018,872</u>
Book value-depreciable assets	\$ <u>2,640,787</u>	\$ <u>2,763,495</u>
Percentage depreciated	<u>30</u> %	<u>27</u> %
Book value-all assets	\$ <u>2,651,287</u>	\$ <u>2,773,995</u>

The depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 30% and 27% depreciated for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. This comparison indicates that the Library is replacing its governmental assets faster than they are depreciating.

The major additions are:

- 9 computers
- Books

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the fiscal year, the Library did not report any long-term debt outstanding. However, based upon an agreement between the Library and the Allen Parish Police Jury, the Library will fund the repayment of \$1,500,000 Limited Tax Library Revenue Bonds issued in April, 2015. All of this amount is backed by the full faith and credit of the Allen Parish Police Jury, not the Library, with debt service funded by ad valorem taxes revenues collected by the Library.

### Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the year, the Library funded \$218,000 in long-term debt retirement. See Note K for additional information regarding long-term debt.

# CONTACTING THE LIBRARY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Library's finances, comply with finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the Library's commitment to public accountability. If you have any questions about this report or would like to request additional information, contact the 'Library's Director, Agnes Guillory, P.O. Box 400, Oberlin, LA 70655.

,



# **ROYCE T. SCIMEMI, CPA, APAC**

# **CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT**

P.O. Box 210 405 Tiger Lane Oberlin, LA 70655 Tele (337) 639-4334, Fax (337) 639-4068

Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Member Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants

June 24, 2021

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Control Allen Parish Library Oberlin, Louisiana

# **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the only major fund of the Allen Parish Library (the "Library"), a component unit of the Allen Parish Police Jury, as of and for the year ended, December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Library's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Independent Auditors' Report Allen Parish Library June 24, 2021 Page 2

#### **Opinions**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and the only major fund of the Allen Parish Library, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Other Matters**

#### **Required Supplementary Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 - 10, the budgetary comparison information, schedule of employer's proportionate share of net pension liability (asset), schedule of employer's pension plan contributions, and the notes to such information on pages 43 - 47 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements. The schedule of compensation paid to the board of control members and the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to chief executive officer are presented on pages 48 through 49 for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information directly to the underlying accounting and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of compensation paid to the board of control members and the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to chief executive officer are fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2021, on our consideration of the Library's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Library's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Royce T. Scimemi, CPA, APAC Oberlin, Louisiana

Rayne T. Dumin, CPA, APAC

# BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# GOVERNMENT-WIDE

# FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS)

,

# Allen Parish Library Statement of Net Position December 31, 2020

	Primary Government
	Governmental Activities
ASSETS	
Current Assets:	
Cash	\$ 246,558
Investments	631,046
Taxes receivable	1,064,790
Prepaid items	18,953
Total current assets	1,961,347
Noncurrent Assets:	
Land	10,500
Capital Assets, Net	2,640,787
Total noncurrent assets	2,651,287
Total Assets	4,612,634
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Aggregated deferred outflows	78,597
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources	78,597
Current Liabilities:	40.000
Accounts payable	10,222
Salaries payable Accrued liabilities	13,571
Total current liabilities	23,795
Noncurrent Liabilities:	23,793
Compensated absences payable	61,233
Net pension liability	2,565
Total noncurrent liabilities	63,798
Total Liabilities	87,593
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Aggregated deferred inflows	132,498
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	132,498
NET POSITION	
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt	2,651,287
Unrestricted	1,819,853
Total Net Position	\$ 4,471,140

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

.

# Allen Parish Library Statement of Activities For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

			Program Revenue	5	Net (Expense) Revenue
			Operating	Capital Grants	Primary Government
		Charges for	Grants and	and	
Functions/Programs	Expenses	Services	Contributions	Contributions	Governmental Activities
Primary Government					
Governmental Activities:					
Culture and recreation \$	1,193,897	\$	<u>\$                                    </u>	<u>\$ 6,775</u>	<u>\$ (1,187,122)</u>
Total Governmental Activities	1,193,897	\$	<u>\$</u>	\$ 6,775	(1,187,122)
		State revenue s Intergovernment Interest and inve Non-employer pe Miscellaneous <i>Total General</i> <i>Change in Ne</i>	es, levied for general pu haring al-local stment earnings ension contributions <b>Revenues</b> t <b>Position</b> eginning of Period	ırposes	1,264,936 55,578 2,973 10,089 4,410 7,340 1,345,326 158,204 4,312,936 \$ 4,471,140

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

.

...

# FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS)

# Allen Parish Library Balance Sheet Governmental Fund December 31, 2020

	Ge	eneral Fund
ASSETS		
Cash	\$	246,558
Investments		631,046
Taxes receivable		1,064,790
Prepaid items		18,953
Total Assets		1,961,347
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
Aggregated deferred outflows		
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources	\$	1,961,347
LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable	\$	10,222
Salaries payable		13,571
Accrued liabilities		2
Total Liabilities		23,795
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
Unavailable revenue - delinguent ad valorem taxes		60,866
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources		84,661
FUND BALANCE		
Nonspendable		18,953
Unassigned		1,857,733
Total Fund Balance		1,876,686
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance	\$	1,961,347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

ł

# Allen Parish Library Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position December 31, 2020

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Fund	\$ 1,876,686
Pension related changes in net pension liability that are only reported as deferred inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position.	(132,498)
Some of the Library's ad valorem taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are reported as deferred inflows of resources only on the fund financial statements.	60,866
Pension related changes in net pension liability that are only reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position.	78,597
Fixed assets are capitalized in the Statement of Net Position and depreciated in the Statement of Activities. These are expensed when acquired in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.	2,651,287
Net pension liability reflected on the Statement of Net Position not in Governmental Fund Balance Sheet.	(2,565)
Compensated absences payable reflected on the Statement of Net Position and not in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet.	 (61,233)
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities	\$ <u>4,471,140</u>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

# Allen Parish Library Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Fund For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

.

	General Fund	
Revenues		
Taxes - ad valorem	\$	1,276,475
Taxes - state revenue sharing		55,578
Intergovernmental		9,748
Interest		10,089
Miscellaneous		7,340
Total Revenues		1,359,230
Expenditures		
Current:		
Advertising		223
Dues and subscriptions		1,977
Electronic resources		14,431
Insurance		109,652
Miscellaneous		2,970
Office supplies		585
Payroll taxes		10,164
Periodicals and subscriptions		6,537
Professional services		12,000
Rents		15,255
Repairs and maintenance		64,392
Retirement		39,417
Salaries and wages		400,535
Supplies		33,347
Telephone		19,919
Travel		18,729
Utilities		42,699
Debt Service:		
Principal retirement		218,000
Interest		10,900
Capital Outlay		36,727
Total Expenditures		1,058,459
Net Change in Fund Balance		300,771
Fund Balance at Beginning of Period		1,575,915
Fund Balance at End of Period	\$	1,876,686

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

# Allen Parish Library Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance with Statement of Activities For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Total Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund	\$ 300,771
Fixed assets expensed as capital outlay in governmental fund statements and capitalized as fixed assets in Statement of Net Position.	36,727
Compensated absences expensed as paid in governmental fund statements, expensed as incurred in entity-wide statements, and reflected as liability on Statement of Net Position.	(6,500)
Depreciation expense reflected in entity-wide statements and not reflected in governmental fund statements.	(159,435)
Contributions to retirement systems by non-employers.	4,410
Pension expense is based on employer contributions in the government fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance but is an actuarially calculated expense on the Statement of Activities.	(6,230)
Some of the Library's ad valorem taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial statements, but are included in revenue on the Statement of Activities - Net change in unavailable	
revenues - delinquent ad valorem taxes.	(11,539)
Changes in Net Position - Governmental Activities	\$ 158,204

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

.

# Notes to Basic Financial Statements

### (A) <u>Summary of Significant Accounting Polices</u>

The accompanying financial statements of the Allen Parish Library (the Library) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of these notes.

Such accounting and reporting procedures also conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statues 24:513 and to the guidelines set forth in the industry audit guide, *Audits of State and Local Governments*, issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the *Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide*.

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies:

# 1. Financial Reporting Entity

GASB Statement 14 established criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. For financial reporting purposes, in conformance with GASB Statement 14, the Library includes all funds that are within its oversight responsibility.

As the governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Allen Parish Police Jury is the financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

GASB Statement 14 established criteria for determining which component units should be considered part of the Allen Parish Police Jury for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability.

The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include:

- 1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and
  - a. The ability of the Allen Parish Police Jury to impose its will on that organization, and/or
  - b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Allen Parish Police Jury.

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

- 2. Organizations for which the Allen Parish Police Jury does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent on the Allen Parish Police Jury.
- 3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements could be misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship.

The Allen Parish Library is a component unit of the Allen Parish Police Jury and was created under Louisiana Revised Statute 25:211. The purpose of the Library is to provide library facilities to residents within its boundaries. The Library is governed by a Board of Control consisting of five (5) board members appointed by the Allen Parish Police Jury from the citizenry of Allen Parish. The Police Jury does provide financing, and it does exercise some control over operations by virtue of the fact that it appoints the Board of Control. The Library itself has no component units.

This report encompasses all funds of the Library that are controlled by or dependent on the Library's executive and legislative branches (the Board of Control). Control by or dependence on the Library was determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election or appointment of governing body, and other general oversight responsibilities. These financial statements represent the financial position and activity of the Library alone and not that of the Allen Parish Police Jury.

# 2. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)

The government-wide financial statements provide operational accountability information for the Library as an economic unit. The government-wide financial statements report the Library's ability to maintain service levels and continue to meet its obligations as they come due. These statements include all governmental activities of the Library.

#### Fund Financial Statements (FFS)

The accounts of the Library are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be an independent fiscal and accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for within separate sets of self-balancing accounts, which comprise its assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, fund balances, revenues, expenditures, and transfers. The Library uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to certain Library functions and activities. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major funds, each displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

the Library or if its total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures are at least 10% of the corresponding total for all governmental funds. The Library has one fund, the General Fund, which is therefore considered its major fund and is categorized as a governmental fund. The fund used by the Library is described below.

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the Library's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds.

#### General Fund

The Library's governmental fund is the General Fund, which is the general operating fund of the Library. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

# 3 Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The measurement focus determines the accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund or governmental activity. The governmental activities within the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. The economic resources measurement focus meets the accounting objectives of determining net income and net position.

The fund financial statements use either the current financial resources measurement focus or the economic resources measurement focus as appropriate. Governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus. This measurement focus is based upon the receipt and disbursement of current available financial resources rather than net income.

The accrual basis of accounting is used throughout the government-wide financial statements; conversely, the financial statements of the General Fund have been prepared in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when considered both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. For this purpose, the Library considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty (60) days from the end of the current fiscal period. The Library accrues intergovernmental and tax revenues based upon this concept. Interest on deposits and investments is recognized when earned. Intergovernmental revenues that are reimbursements for specific purposes or projects are recognized in the period in which the expenditures are recorded. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the cash is received by the Library.

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liabilities are incurred and become payable in the current period. Proceeds of debt are reported as other financing sources, and principal and interest on long-term debt, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded as expenditures when paid.

Since the fund level statements are presented using a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements, a reconciliation is presented on the page following each fund level statement that reconciles the fund level statements to the government-wide presentations.

#### 4. <u>Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Equity</u>

Cash and interest-bearing deposits

Cash and interest-bearing deposits include all demand accounts and savings accounts of the Library.

Investments

Under state law, the Library may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, government backed agency securities, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having an office in Louisiana. In accordance with professional standards, investments meeting the criteria specified in the standards are stated at fair value, which is either a quoted market price or the best estimate available. Investments which do not meet the requirements are stated at cost.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables, including amounts due from other governments, consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.

#### Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit the period beyond December 31, 2020 are recorded as prepaid items.

#### Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements. The Library's accounting policies regarding capital assets are that these assets, with an initial cost of \$500 or more, are to be capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Purchased or constructed capital assets are valued at

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an expense in the statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Building and improvements	40 years
Books, furniture, fixtures, and equipment	5-10 years

#### Compensated Absences

Each full-time employee earns eight (8) hours of sick leave per month, which can be accumulated up to sixty days and is converted to a retirement credit at time of retirement. Employees who resign or are dismissed from employment shall not be paid for any accrued sick leave.

Vacation leave is earned by each full-time employee on an annual basis as follows:

Executive Administrative Staff days	24
Administrative staff days	22
Professional staff	
1 year to 10 years of service days	10
10 years or more of service days	15

Employees also earn compensated time for overtime hours worked. The compensated time may be used as time off in the future in lieu of overtime pay. Employees may accumulate and carry over vacation leave and compensated time. Any annual leave beyond the annual accrual that is carried over and not used is forfeited at the time of separation of employment.

#### Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Library has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, the deferred outflow of resources attributable to its pension plan, which is disclosed in Note I.

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Library has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category in the government-wide statement of net position, the deferred inflow of resources attributable to its pension plan, which is disclosed in Note I. The Library also reported deferred inflows of resources in the general fund balance sheet related to unavailable revenue of \$60,866 as disclosed in Note G.

#### Equity Classifications

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

- a. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
- b. Restricted net position consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by external groups, such as grantors, creditors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments, or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
- c. Unrestricted net position consists of all other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investments in capital assets."

When an expense is incurred that can be paid either using restricted or unrestricted resources (net position), it is the Library's policy to use restricted resources prior to the use of unrestricted resources.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily upon the extent to which the Library is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. The categories and their purposes are:

1. Nonspendable includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints requiring they remain intact. The Library's nonspendable fund balance includes prepaid insurance.

# Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

- 2. Restricted includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally imposed by providers, such as grantors, donors, and creditors, or amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
- 3. Committed includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed by the government through formal legislative action of the Board of Control and do not lapse at year-end. A committed fund balance constraint can only be established, modified, or rescinded by passage of a resolution by the Board of Control.
- 4. Assigned includes fund balance amounts that are constrained by the Library's intent to be used for specific purposes, that are neither restricted nor committed. An assignment of fund balance is authorized by a directive from the Library's Director with approval by a resolution by the Board of Control.
- 5. Unassigned includes fund balance amounts which have not been classified within the above-mentioned categories.

In governmental funds, the Library's policy is to first apply the expenditures toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive classifications (committed and then assigned fund balances) before using unassigned fund balances.

As of December 31, 2020, the General Fund's fund balance is composed of the following:

Nonspendable – prepaid items	\$ 18,953
Unassigned	<u>1,857,733</u>
Total fund balance	\$ <u>1,876,686</u>

# Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

### 5. <u>Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses</u>

#### Revenues

The Library considers revenue to be susceptible to accrual in the governmental funds as it becomes measurable and available, as defined under the modified accrual basis of accounting. The Library's major revenue sources that meet this availability criterion are ad valorem tax revenue, state revenue sharing revenue, and intergovernmental revenue.

There are two classifications of program revenues for the Library, program specific grant and contributions revenue and charges for services. Grant revenues are revenues from federal, state, and private grants. These revenues are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met and are reported as intergovernmental revenues. The primary source of charges for services is fees, fines and charges paid by patrons of the Library for services. In the government-wide statement of activities, property taxes and state revenue sharing funds are reported as general revenues because the Library has discretion in the application of these funds to various programs/functions administered by the Library. Interest income is recorded as earned in the fund holding the interest-bearing asset.

# Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by character and function. In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified by character.

# 6. <u>Use of Estimates</u>

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of: a) assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred outflows of resources, b) contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and c) revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. These estimates include assessing the collectability of accounts receivable and the useful lives and impairment of tangible and intangible assets, among others. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

# 7. <u>Subsequent Events</u>

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2021, the date the financial statements were issued. In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus was reported in Wuhan, China, The World Health Organization has declared the

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

outbreak to constitute a "Public Health Emergency of International Concern." The COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a range of industries all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the Library's financial condition or results of operations is uncertain. On August 27, 2020 Hurricane Laura made landfall in Southwest Louisiana as a Category 4 hurricane which was followed by Hurricane Delta on October 8, 2020. The full extent of damages to the Library's facilities or effects on operations have not been determined.

#### (B) <u>Cash and Interest-Bearing Deposits</u>

Under state law, the Library may deposit funds with a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United States. The Library may invest in certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having an office in Louisiana. At December 31, 2020, the Library has cash and interest-bearing deposits (book balances) totaling \$246,558, as follows:

Demand deposits

#### \$246,558

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the Library's deposits may not be recovered or the collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party will not be recovered. Under state law, deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent bank. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties.

Deposit balances (bank balances) at December 31, 2020, are secured as follows:

Bank balances	\$ 251,120
Federal deposit insurance	(250,500)
Collateral securities (Category 3)	(620)
Total – uninsured and uncollateralized	<u>\$</u>

There were \$620 in deposits that would otherwise be exposed to custodial credit risk but are protected from such risk by collateralized securities held by the pledging institution, its trust department or agent, but not in the Library's name (Category 3 deposits). Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Library that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

# Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

#### (C) <u>Investments</u>

At December 31, 2020, the Library's investments were as follows:

Investment Type	% of	Fair	Less Than	One-Five
	<u>Portfolio</u>	<u>Value</u>	<u>One Year</u>	<u>Years</u>
Governmental Activities: Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP)	<u>100%</u>	<u>\$631,046</u>	<u>\$631,046</u>	<u>\$</u>

The Library participates in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). LAMP is an investment pool established as a cooperative endeavor to enable public entities of the State of Louisiana to aggregate funds for investment. LAMP is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an investment company. LAMP is intended to improve administrative efficiency and increase yield of participating public entities. LAMP's portfolio securities are valued at market value even though the amortized cost method is permitted by Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which governs registered money market funds. Because LAMP is not a money market fund, it has no obligation to conform to this rule.

The investment in LAMP is not exposed to custodial credit risk and is not categorized in the three categories provided by GASB Codification Section I50.164 because the investment is in the pool of funds and therefore not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. LAMP has a fund rating of AAA issued by Standard & Poor's. The fair value of investments is determined on a weekly basis by LAMP, and the fair value of the Library's investment in LAMP is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Interest Rate Risk – The Library does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk/Concentration of Credit Risk – Credit risk is defined as the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The Library limits its investments outside of LAMP to government securities that are direct and indirect obligations of the United States Government. At December 31, 2020, the Library did not have any such investments.

Custodial Credit Risk – For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the Library will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Library requires all investments to be in the Library's name and all ownership securities to be evidenced by an acceptable safekeeping receipt issued by a third-party financial institution which is acceptable to the Library.

# (D) <u>Due from Other Governmental Units</u>

Amounts due from other governmental units at December 31, 2020 consisted of the following:

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

\$0

Amount due from the Allen Parish Sheriff's Office for state revenue sharing payments for fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.

#### (E) <u>Capital Assets</u>

Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:

		alance 31/19		Additions	D	eletions		Balance 12/31/20
Governmental Activities:								
Non-depreciable capital assets:			~		*		4	
Land	\$	10,500	\$	-	\$	-	\$	10,500
Other capital assets:								
Buildings	2,7	790,872		-		-		2,790,872
Books	2	128,022		28,209		56,392		399,839
Furniture and fixtures		88,279		-		-		88,279
Equipment		75,194		8,518	_	-		483,712
Totals	3,7	792,867		36,727		56,392		3,773,202
Less accumulated depreciation:								
Buildings	4	523,106		70,626		-		593,732
Books	3	818,596		35,207		56,392		297,411
Furniture and fixtures		32,410		8,854		-		41,264
Equipment	1	44,760		44,748		-		189,508
Total accumulated depreciation		18,872		159,435		56,392	_	1,121,915
Capital assets, net	<u>\$   2,7</u>	73,995	<u>\$</u>	(122,708)	<u>\$</u>		<u>\$</u>	2,651,287

Depreciation expense of \$159,435 was charged to the culture and recreation function.

#### (F) Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payables

The accounts, salaries, and other payables consisted of the following at December 31, 2020:

Accounts payable Salaries payable	\$ 10,222 13,571
Accrued liabilities Total	<u>2</u> <u>\$_23,795</u>

# (G) Unavailable Revenues

Unavailable revenues are reported in governmental funds and represent revenue received more than 60 days following year-end (and, therefore, unavailable to pay liabilities of the current period). Unavailable revenue received after 60 days is recognized as revenue in the government-wide financial statements. At December 31, 2020, governmental funds' revenues that have been earned but are unavailable totaled \$60,866, which was comprised of delinquent ad valorem tax revenue.

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

#### (H) <u>Ad Valorem Taxes</u>

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are levied in September or October and are actually billed to the taxpayers in November or December. Billed taxes are due by December 31, becoming delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Tax revenues are recognized in the year they are billed.

The taxes are based on assessed values determined by the Allen Parish Tax Assessor and are collected by the Allen Parish Sheriff. The taxes are remitted to the Allen Parish Library net of deductions for pension fund contributions.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, taxes of 10.81 mills were levied on property with net assessed valuations totaling \$121,684,116 and were dedicated to paying the administrative, operations and maintenance expenditures for the Library. Total taxes levied during 2020 were \$1,315,405. Taxes receivable at December 31, 2020 totaled \$1,064,790.

# (I) <u>Employee Retirement System</u>

The Library participates in the Parochial Employees' Retirement System (PERS), a costsharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan, administered by a separate public employee retirement system. Article X, Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of this plan to the State Legislature. Substantially all Library employees participate in the PERS which is not closed to new entrants.

### **Plan Description**

PERS provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to eligible employees and their beneficiaries as defined in Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:1901 and 11:1941. All permanent Library employees who work at least 28 hours a week shall become members on the date of employment. New employees meeting the age and Social Security criteria have up to 90 days from the date of hire to elect to participate. The Library participates in Plan A.

PERS' financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized in the period in which the employee is compensated for services performed. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Interest income is recognized when earned. Ad valorem taxes and revenue sharing monies are recognized in the year collected by the tax collector.

A brief summary of eligibility requirements and benefits of the plans are provided in the following table:

Final average salary	compensation
Years of service required and/or age eligible for benefits for employees hired prior to January 1, 2007	30 years at any age 25 years age 55

Final average

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

	10 years age 60 7 years age 65
Years of service required and/or age eligible for benefits for employees hired on or after January 1, 2007	30 years age 55 10 years age 62 7 years age 67
Benefit percent per year of service for the member's final average compensation multiplied by his/her years of creditable service	3.0%

## Survivor Benefits:

Upon the death of any member of Plan A with five (5) or more years of creditable service who is not eligible for retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children, as outlined in the statutes. Upon the death of any member of Plan A who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death, the surviving spouse shall receive an automatic Option 2 benefit, as outlined in the statutes. A surviving spouse who is not eligible for Social Security survivorship or retirement benefits, and married not less than twelve (12) months immediately preceding death of the member, shall be paid an Option 2 benefit beginning at age 50.

### Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP):

Act 338 of 1990 established the DROP for the retirement system. DROP is an option for members who are eligible for normal retirement. In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement, any member who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the DROP in which they are enrolled for three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP fund.

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant in the DROP may receive, at their option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund or roll over the fund to an individual retirement account. Interest is accrued on the DROP benefits for the period between the end of DROP participation and the member's retirement date.

For individuals who become eligible to participate in the DROP on or after January 1, 2004, all amounts which remain credited to the individual's subaccount after termination in DROP will be placed in liquid asset money market investments at the discretion of the PERS board of trustees. These subaccounts may be credited with interest based on money market rates of return or, at the option of the PERS, the funds may be credited to self-directed subaccounts. The participant in the self-directed portion of DROP must agree that the benefits payable to the participant are not the obligations of the state or the PERS, and that any returns and other rights of DROP are the sole liability and responsibility of the participant and the designated provider to which contributions have been made.

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

#### **Disability Benefits:**

A member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he/she was hired prior to January 1, 2007 and has at least five years of creditable service, or if hired on or after January 1, 2007, has seven years of creditable service not be eligible for normal retirement, and has been officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of an amount equal to 3% of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his/her years of service, not to be less than 15, or 3% multiplied by years of service assuming continued service to age 60.

#### Cost of Living Increases:

The Board is authorized to provide a cost of living allowance for those retirees who retired prior to July, 1973. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each full calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of normal requirements. In addition, the Board may provide an additional cost of living increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are over age 65 equal to 2% of the member's benefit paid on October 1, 1977 (or the member's retirement date, if later). Also, the Board may provide a cost of living increase up to 2.5% for retirees 62 and older. (RS 11:1937). Lastly, Act 270 of 2009 provided for further reduced actuarial payments to provide an annual 2.5% cost of living adjustment commencing at age 55.

#### Contributions

Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially determined using statutorily established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion of the normal cost and provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer contributions are adopted by the Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. In addition, PERS receives a percentage of ad valorem taxes collected by parishes. These entities are not participating employers in the pension system and are considered to be non-employer contributing entities. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the contribution percentages for employees and employers were 9.5% and 12.25%, respectively. The amounts contributed from non-employer contributing entities for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 were \$4,410 and \$4,697, respectively.

At December 31, 2020 the Library reported no outstanding liability for contributions due to PERS for the year.

# Net Pension Liability

The Library's net pension liability at December 31, 2020 of \$2,565 is comprised of its proportionate share of the net pension liability relating to the cost-sharing plan. The Library's

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

net pension liability for the plan was measured as of the plan's measurement date, December 31, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Library's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the plan was based on the Library's required contributions in proportion to total required contributions for all employers.

As of the most recent measurement date, the Library's proportion for the plan was 0.054488% and the change in proportion from the prior measurement date was an increase of 0.006985%.

Since the measurement date of the net pension liability was December 31, 2019 for PERS, the net pension liability is based upon fiduciary net position for the plan as of that date. Detailed information about the plan's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, and fiduciary net position that was used in the measurement of the Library's net pension liability is available in the separately issued plan financial report which may be accessed on the PERS website at <u>http://www.persla.org/</u>. The plan financial report can also be obtained by contacting PERSLA at 7905 Wrenwood Blvd., Baton Rouge, LA 70898; telephone (225) 928-1361. The plan's fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as that used by the plan.

#### **Actuarial Assumptions**

The following table provides information concerning actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the total pension liability for PERS:

Valuation Date	December 31, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method	Entry Age Normal
Expected Remaining Service Lives	4 years
Investment Rate of Return	6.50%, net of investment expense, including inflation
Projected Salary Increases	4.75%
Cost of Living Adjustments	The present value of future retirement benefits is based on
	benefits currently being paid by the system and includes
	previously granted cost of living increases. The present
	values do not include provisions for potential future
	increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees.
Mortality Rates	Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for
	Healthy Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125%
	for females using MP2018 scale for annuitant and
	beneficiary mortality. For employees, the Pub-2010 Public
	Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Employees
	multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females using
	MP2018 scale. Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans
	Mortality Table for General Disabled Retirees multiplied
	by 130% for males and 125% for females using MP2018
	scale for disabled annuitants.
Inflation Rate	2.40%

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

#### **Discount Rate**

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.50% for Plan A. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers and non-employer contributing entities will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the PERS's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a triangulation method which integrated the capital asset pricing model (top-down), a treasury yield curve approach (bottom-up) and an equity building-block model (bottom-up). Risk return and correlations are projected on a forward-looking basis in equilibrium, in which best estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These rates are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.00% and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return is 7.18% for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the PERS's target asset allocation as of December 31, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

	Long-Term
Target Asset	Expected Real
Allocation	Rate of Return
35%	1.05%
52%	3.41%
11%	0.61%
2%	<u>0.11</u> %
<u>100</u> %	5.18%
	<u>2.00</u> %
Return	<u>7.18</u> %
	Allocation 35% 52% 11% _2%

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed on plan data for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2017. The data was assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. As a result of this study, mortality for employees was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Employees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females, each with full generational projection using the MP2018 scale. In addition, mortality Table for Healthy Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females, each with full generational projection using the MP2018 scale. For disabled

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

annuitants, mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Disabled Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females, each with full generational projection using the MP2018 scale.

#### **Cost of Living Adjustments**

PERS has the authority to grant cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) on an ad hoc basis. Pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 11:242(B), the power of the Board of Trustees of the PERS to grant a COLA is effective in calendar years that the legislature fails to grant a COLA, unless in the legislation granting a COLA, the legislature authorizes the Board of Trustees to provide an additional COLA. The authority to grant a COLA by the Board is subject to the funded status and interest earnings. The effects of the benefit changes made as a result of the COLAs is included in the measurement of the total pension liability as of the measurement date at which the ad hoc COLA was granted and the amount is known and reasonably estimable.

# Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to the Pension Plan

Changes in the net pension liability may either be reported in pension expense in the year the change occurred or recognized as a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources in the year the change occurred and amortized into pension expense over a number of years. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Library recognized \$45,647 in pension expense related to its pension plan.

At December 31, 2020, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to its pension plan from the following sources:

	Governmental Activities		
	Deferred Outflows	Deferred Inflows	
	of Resources	of Resources	
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$-	\$ 22,964	
Net difference between projected and actual			
earnings on pension plan investments	-	96,157	
Changes in assumptions	35,826	-	
Changes in proportion of beginning net pension liabilit	ty 3,354	7,780	
Differences between Library contributions and	• ·		
proportionate share of contributions	-	5,597	
Library contributions subsequent to the			
measurement date	39,417		
Total	<u>\$ 78,597</u>	\$132,498	

Deferred outflows of resources of \$39,417 resulting from the employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability during the year ending December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

	Net Amount
	Recognized in
	Pension Expense
2021	\$ (22,368)
2022	(27,540)
2023	(119)
2024	(43,291)
Total	<u>\$ (93,318)</u>

# Sensitivity of the Library's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Library's proportionate shares of the net pension liability of the plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the Library's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if they were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

	1% Decrease <u>(5.50%)</u>	Current Discount Rate (6.50%)	1% Increase (7.50%)
Library's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)	\$ 277,249	\$ 2,565	\$(227,615)

Change in Net Pension Liability: The changes in net pension liability for the year ended December 31, 2020 were recognized in the current reporting period as pension expense except as follows:

## Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience:

Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors in the measurement of total pension liability were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line method amortization over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The difference between expected and actual experience resulted in a deferred inflow of resources of \$22,964 for the year ended December 31, 2020.

#### Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments:

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed four

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

year period. The difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments resulted in a deferred inflow of resources of \$96,157 for the year ended December 31, 2020.

#### Changes in Assumptions:

Changes in assumptions about future economic or demographic factors were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. Changes in assumptions resulted in a deferred outflow of resources of \$35,826 for the year ended December 31, 2020.

#### Changes in Proportion:

Changes in the proportionate share of collective net pension liability and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. Changes in proportionate share of beginning net pension liability resulted in a deferred outflow of resources of \$3,354 and a deferred inflows of resources of \$7,780 for the year ended December 31, 2020.

## Differences Between Library Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions:

Differences between Library contributions and proportionate share of contributions are recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. Differences between Library contributions and proportionate share of contributions resulted in a deferred inflow of resources of \$5,597 for the year ended December 31, 2020.

## (J) Risk Management

The Library is exposed to risks of loss in areas of general liability, property hazards and workers' compensation. All of these risks are handled by purchasing commercial insurance coverage. There have been no significant reductions in the insurance coverage during the year, nor have settlements exceeded coverage for the past three years.

## (K) Limited Tax Library Revenue Bonds

In April, 2015, the Allen Parish Police Jury issued \$1,500,000 of Limited Tax Library Revenue Bonds. Based upon an agreement between the Library and the Allen Parish Police Jury, the proceeds of the bonds were utilized to fund renovations of two library branches. The Library in turn funds the debt service requirements of these bonds by transferring ad valorem tax revenue equal to the debt service payment on the bonds annually to the Allen Parish Police Jury. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Library paid \$228,900 (\$218,000 in principal and \$10,900

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

in interest) to the Allen Parish Police Jury for annual debt service payments. Interest was included as a direct program expense in the government-wide financial statements.

#### (L) <u>Litigation</u>

There was no litigation pending against the Allen Parish Library at December 31, 2020.

#### (M) <u>Tax Abatements</u>

Louisiana's State Constitution Article VII, Section 21 authorized the State Board of Commerce and Industry to create a ten (10) year ad valorem tax abatement program for new manufacturing establishments in the State. Under the terms of this program, qualified businesses may apply for an exemption of local ad valorem taxes on capital improvements and equipment relating to manufacturing for the first ten (10) years of its operation; after which the property will be added to the local tax roll and taxed at the value and millage in force at the time. The future value of this exempt property could be subject to significant fluctuation from today's value; however, the Library could receive a substantial increase in ad valorem tax revenues once the exemption on this property expires. All applicable agreements have been entered into by the Allen Parish Police Jury and directly affect the Library's ad valorem assessments. Because these taxes are not assessed or due, no adjustments have been made to the Library's basic financial statements to record a receivable. As of December 31, 2020, \$4,784,250 of assessed property in the Library's taxing jurisdiction is receiving this exemption for the "parish out" millage. This resulted in an ad valorem tax exemption amounting to \$51,718.

# REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

# Allen Parish Library Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual General Fund For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

	Budget	ed Amounts		Variance Favorable (Unfavorable) Final to
	Original	Final	Actual	Actual
Revenues				
Taxes - ad valorem	\$ 1,250,294	\$ 1,250,294	\$ 1,276,475	\$ 26,181
Taxes - state revenue sharing	34,091	34,091	55,578	21,487
Intergovernmental	3,964	3,964	9,748	5,784
Interest Income			10,089	10,089
Miscellaneous	9,800	9,800	7,340	(2,460)
Total Revenues	1,298,149	1,298,149	1,359,230	61,081
Expenditures				
Current:				
Advertising	1,500	1,500	223	1,277
Dues and subscriptions	2,600	2,600	1,977	623
Electronic resources	22,502	22,502	14,431	8,071
Insurance	129,500	131,208	109,652	21,556
Miscellaneous	4,064	4,064	2,970	1,094
Office supplies	1,000	1,000	585	415
Payroll taxes	11,000	11,000	10,164	836
Pension expense	52,000	52,000		52,000
Periodicals and subscriptions	7,000	7,000	6,537	463
Professional services	12,000	12,000	12,000	
Rents	19,000	19,000	15,255	3,745
Repairs and maintenance	90,634	90,634	64,392	26,242
Retirement	40,000	40,683	39,417	1,266
Salaries and wages	488,933	488,933	400,535	88,398
Supplies	33,700	36,200	33,347	2,853
Telephone	15,000	16,500	19,919	(3,419)
Travel	32,500	26,109	18,729	7,380
Utilities	51,315	51,315	42,699	8,616
Debt Service:				
Principal retirement	218,000	218,000	218,000	
Interest	10,901	10,901	10,900	1
Capital Outlay	193,732	193,732	36,727	157,005
Total Expenditures	1,436,881	1,436,881	1,058,459	378,422
Net Change in Fund Balance	(138,732)	(138,732)	300,771	439,503
Fund Balance at Beginning of Period	1,575,915	1,575,915	1,575,915	
Fund Balance at End of Period	\$ 1,437,183	\$ 1,437,183	\$ 1,876,686	\$ 439,503

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

# Schedule of Library's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) Year Ended December 31, 2020\*

Year Ended December 31,	Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)	Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)	Employer's Covered Employee Payroll	Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered Employee Payroll	Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability
Parochial Em	ployees' Retire	ment System of	f Louisiana – P	'lan A	
2016	0.053592%	\$ 141,070	\$ 307,275	5.97%	99.15%
2017	0.046690%	\$ 96,159	\$ 276,896	50.95%	92.23%
2018	0.049758%	\$ (36,933)	\$ 283,050	33.97%	94.15%
2019	0.061473%	\$ 272,839	\$ 284,397	(12.99%)	101.98%

\$ 345,121

79.06%

88.86%

\* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year-end.

0.054488% \$ 2,565

2020

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

.

# Schedule of Library's Pension Plan Contributions Year Ended December 31, 2020

				ontributions i Relation to	n			mployer's	Contributions as a % of
Year		ontractually	(	Contractual	Contri	bution		Covered	Covered
Ended		Required		Required	Defic	ciency	E	mployee	Employee
December 31,	<u> </u>	ontribution	<u>_C</u>	ontribution	_(Exc	ess)		Payroll	Payroll
Parochial En	ıple	•	eme	ent System o	of Louisi	iana – Pla	an A		
2015	\$	44,555	\$	44,555	\$	-	\$	307,275	14.50%
2016	\$	35,997	\$	35,997	\$	-	\$	276,896	13.00%
2017	\$	35,381	\$	35,381	\$	-	\$	283,050	12.50%
2018	\$	32,706	\$	32,706	\$	-	\$	284,397	11.50%
2019	\$	39,689	\$	39,689	\$	-	\$	345,121	11.50%
2020	\$	39,417	\$	39,417	\$	-	\$	321,769	12.25%

• •

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.* 

.

# Notes to Required Supplementary Information

# (1) <u>Budget and Budgetary Accounting</u>

The Library follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

- 1. The Library's Director prepares a proposed budget and presents it to the Board of Control prior to ninety days before the beginning of each fiscal year.
- 2. After the proposed budget is presented to the Board of Control, the Board publishes the proposed budget and notifies the public that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called.
- 3. A public hearing is held by the Board on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the hearing.
- 4. Any changes in the proposed annual operating budget require a majority vote of the Board of Control.
- 5. No later than the last regular meeting of the fiscal year, the Board of Control adopts the annual operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year.
- 6. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
- 7. Budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

## (2) Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year, and encumbrance accounting is not used by the Library. Budgeted amounts included in the accompanying financial statements include the original adopted budget amounts and the final amended budget amounts. The budget was amended once during the year.

## (3) <u>Pension Information</u>

The schedule of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability and the schedule of the Library's pension contributions are intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

# Schedule of Compensation Paid to the Board of Control Members

# Year Ended December 31, 2020

Linda Thompson	\$	-
Kay Sonnier		-
Sherry Germany		-
Fran Postello-Jordan		-
Craig Vizena	<u></u>	-
Total Compensation Paid to Board Members	\$ <u></u>	-

The Board of Control members serve without compensation.

# Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Chief Executive Officer

# Year Ended December 31, 2020

# Chief Executive Officer: Agnes Guillory, Director

<u>Purpose</u>	<u>Amount</u>
Salary	\$ 65,500
Benefits-insurance	9,878
Benefits-retirement	8,024
Benefits-cell phone	726
Membership dues	287
Car allowance	-0-
Vehicle provided by government	-0-
Per diem	-0-
Reimbursements	-0-
Travel	3,613
Registration fees	-0-
Conference travel	-0-
Continuing professional education fees	-0-
Housing	-0-
Unvouchered expenses	-0-
Meals	110



25

# **ROYCE T. SCIMEMI, CPA, APAC**

## **CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT**

P.O. Box 210 405 Tiger Lane Oberlin, LA 70655 Tele (337) 639-4334, Fax (337) 639-4068

Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Accountants Member Society of Louisiana Certified Public

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH *GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS*

Board of Control Allen Parish Library Oberlin, Louisiana

June 24, 2021

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and the only major fund of the Allen Parish Library (the "Library"), a component unit of the Allen Parish Police Jury, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2021.

## **Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Library's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify one deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, as item 2020-1 I/C, that we consider to be a significant deficiency. Board of Control Allen Parish Library June 24, 2021 Page 2

## **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Library's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance and other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### Allen Parish Library's Response to Findings

The Library's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The Library's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Library's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Summi, CPA, APAC

Royce T. Scimemi President Royce T. Scimemi, CPA, APAC Oberlin, Louisiana

#### Schedule of Findings and Responses

#### Year Ended December 31, 2020

#### **Summary of Auditors' Results**

Financial Statements Type of auditors' report issued: unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

<ul> <li>Material weakness(es) identified?</li> </ul>	yes	<u>X</u> no
<ul> <li>Control deficiencies(s) identified that are not considered to be material weakness(es)?</li> <li>Noncompliance material to financial</li> </ul>	<u>X</u> yes	none reported
statements noted?	yes	<u>X</u> no

# Findings - Financial Statement Audit

Finding #2020-1 I/C: Inadequate Segregation of Duties

Criteria: The Library does not have adequate segregation of duties within the accounting function.

Cause: Due to the relatively small number of employees that the Library can afford to compensate, some employees are performing functions that should be segregated.

Effect: Increased risk of employee illegal actions and concealment of same.

- Recommendation: This situation in inherent in most entities of this type and we recommend that the Board of Control take an active interest in the review of all of the financial information.
- Response: See Corrective Action Plan

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

-

Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Audit Findings and Responses (Unaudited) Year Ended December 31, 2020

Finding #2020-1 I/C: Inadequate Segregation of Duties

No response is considered necessary.

# Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings Year Ended December 31, 2020

Finding #2019-1 I/C:

Segregation of Duties

Due to the small number of employees, the Library did not have adequate segregation of duties within the accounting function.